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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June
2022

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements of Pakistan Credit Rating
Agency Limited and its subsidiary (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2022, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the consolidated statement of financial position, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required
and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's affairs as at 30 June
2022 and of the total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Directors' report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereonﬁ.m
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements, or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.,

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error,

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.
Im
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Abdullah
Fahad Masood.

8}4 ol Riden

EY Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountants

Lahore: 07 October 2022

UDIN: AR202210177pXuyhWJxl|




THE i"-"AKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY L:MITED
'CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

Note

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital
12,500,000 (3C Jun 2021 12,500,000)
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
Accumulated profits

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term finance - secured
Deferred Government grants
Lease liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES

C._ :nt portion of long-term finance - secured
Current-portion of deferred Government grants
Current-portion of lease liabilities

Short-term borrowings -secured

Accrued markup

Contract liabiity

Provision for taxation

Trade and other payables

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Right-of-use asset

I stmentin associate
Lorg term deposits
Deferred taxation

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade debts - unsecured

Contract assets

Receivable from retated parties

Lean to an associate - unsecured
Advances, prepayments & other receivables
Advance income tax

Short term investment

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Ch?ef Executive
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2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
125,000,000 125,000,000
7 74,529,000 74,528,000
78,120,580 568,034,935
152,649,580 142,563,035
3 - 5,836,479
9 - 102,793
10 7,818,341 14,280,439
7,818,341 20,219,711
8 9,282,670 21,477,195
9 102,793 783,263
10 6,462,098 5,281,409
11 . -
: 866,413 2,582,859
12 97,982,427 59,198,767
37,509,298 27,089,762
13 58,470,207 51,801,349
210,675,906 168,214,604
371,143,827 330,898,250
14
15 14,985,098 12,314,311
18 133,132 228,179
17 11,813,580 17,870,370
18 68,965,953 68,284,852
1,335,300 1,335,300
19 3,213,180 3,086,493
100,546,243 104,119,508
20 79,726,744 96,274,959
21 - 2,988,905
22 14,173,796 787,535
23 30,000,000 -
24 18,007,485 8,352,443
34,603,221 27.873,509
25 59,963,620 -
26 34,122,718 90,601,394
270,597,584 226,878,745
371,143,827 330,988,250
“'j%f‘*i;/ﬂ
A=
/
Director




THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCONE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Revenue from contracts with customers -net
Remuneration cost
Infrastructure cost

Adrninistrative cost

Operating profit

Provision for expected credit losses on trade debts
Other income

Finance cost

St.ie of loss of associated company

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income for the year

ltems that may be reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent period

- Share cf other comprehensive loss of associated company

items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent period

Tota! comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements{q?
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Note 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees

27 325,069,245 271,930,530
28 (160,811,345) (142,705 444)
29 (25,791,974) {21,067,623)
30 {17,749,485) {18,049,196)
(204,352,804) (181,822 263)

120,716,441 90,108,267

- 201 {4,753,087) (1,862,776)
31 16,890,271 26,105,107
32 {3,092,647) (5.928,551)

| 17.1 {177,257) (8.569,085)
129,583,721 99,852,962
33 (37,374,534) (34,778,810)
92,209,187 65,074,152

171 (141,641) (841,828)
92,067,545 64,232 324

12.37 8.73

/\/v
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Balance as on 01 July 2020
Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit after taxation

Revaluation surplus transferred to accumulated profits
Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Transaction with owners

Final dividend fer the year ended 30 June 2020 at the
rate of Rs 3 per share

Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2021 at
t+" e of Rs 5 per share

Interim dividend for the year ended 3C June 2021 at
the rate of Rs 12.5 per share

Balance as on 30 June 2021
Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit after taxation
Other comprahensive income/{loss)

Transaction with owners

Interim dividend for the year ending 30 June 2022 at
the rate of Rs 5 per share

Interim dividend for the year ending 30 June 2022 at
the rate of Rs & per share

E.‘k nce as on 30 June 2022

Issued,

Capital reserve

Revenue Reserve

subscribed and

Surplus on

. - Accumulated Total
paid-up share revaluation of rofits
capital freehold land P
Rupees

74,529,000 81,945,420 74,641,641 231,116,081
- - 85,074,152 65,074,152
- {81.945,420) 81,945,420 -
- - (841,828) (841,828)
- (81,945,420) 146,177,744 64,232,324
" - {22,358,700) (22.358.700)
- - (37.264,500) {37,264,500)
- - {93,161,250) {93,161,250)
- - (152,784 ,450) (152,784 450)

74,529,000 - 68,034,935 142,563,935
- - 92,209,187 92,209,187
- - {141,641) (141,641)
- - 92,067,545 92,067,545
- - (37,264,500) (37,264,500)
- - (44,717,400) (44,717,400)
- - (81,981,900) (81,981,900)

74,529,000 -

78,120,580

152,649,580

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statementsm

Chief E)%cutive
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation on property and equipment & amortization
Depreciation on right of use asset

Finance cost

Mark-up on saving accounts

Profit on short term investment

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Unwinding of Government grant

Provision for expected credit losses on trade debts
Share of loss of associated company

Exchange loss

Working capital changes

{increase) / decrease in current assets
- Trade debts

+" "ivances, Prepayments & others
“.ontract Asset

Increase / {decrease) in current liabilities
- Trade and other payables
- Contract liability

Cash generated from aperations

Finance cost paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Preceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Loan to associates

Short term investment made

Interest received

N¢" " ash (used in)/ generated from investing activities
Cash flow from financing activities

Long term finance obtained

Long term finance paid

Lease rentals paid

Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Note 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
129,583,721 99,852,962
5,635,967 1,521,453
17 5,956,790 5,956,790
32 3,092,647 5,928,551
(5,094,869) (327,667)
(2,034,455) -
(2,219,268) (18,227 ,633)
31 (783,263) (1,347,798)
201 4,753,087 1,862,776
177,257 8,569,085
- 9,832
139,067,614 103,798,351
13,657,904 21,573,085
(24,515,529) {1,737,527)
2,988,805 (850,294}
(7,868,720) 18,885,264
6,092,260 8,692,027
38,783,660 18,910,008
44,875,920 27,602,036
176,074,814 150,285,651
(258,3938) {2,488,122)
(34,145,124) (27,979 894)
{A) 141,671,292 119,817 635
15 (8,953,439) (7.906,710)
15.2 2,902,000 164,059,500
- (228,144)
(30,000,000) -
{59,963,620) -
6,365,552 327,687
(B) (89,649,507) 156,252,313
- 18,254,196
{19,562,236) -
(6,956,325) (6,718,712)
(81,981,900) (152,784,450)
(C) (108,500,461) (141,246 ,956)
H{A+B+C) (56,478,676) 134,822,982

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

Chief Executive ks
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90,601,394 (44,221,588}
34,122,718 80,601,394
W .
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

1.1

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

The PACRA Group ('the Group") comprises of The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited ("PACRA") ("the Holding
Company"), PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited ("PAPL") (100% owned) and Aequitas Information Services Limited ("AISL"
(20% owned). For the purpose of these consolidated financia! statements, PACRA and its consolidated subsidiary &
associate are referred to as the Group. ‘

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited is part of PACRA Group which consist of:

% age of direct % age of effective
shareholding shareholding
~ Holding Company

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited

Subsidiary Company

PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited 100% 100%
Associated Company

Aequitas information Services Limited 20% 20%

The Holding Company was incorporated as a private limited company in Pakistan on August 18, 1994 and converted into a
public fimited company on April 30, 2004. The business of the Company is to carry cut risk evaluation of companies and
specific instruments. The evaluation is expressed in terms of assigned credit rating to the entity or the instrument reflecting
the capacity to honor its debt or other fixed term obligations. The registered office of the Company is situated at Awami
Complex, FB-1, Usman Block, New Garden Town, Lahore.

PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited - {the "Subsidiary Company")

Pacra Analytics (Private) Limited (the "Subsidiary Company") was incorporated as a private limited company in Pakistan on
January 04, 2010 under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (superseded by the Companies Act, 2017). The objectives of the
Company are to carry on business as management & financial consultants, risk managers, project manager, tax & trust
consultants, planners, advisors, accountants, share registrars, surveyors, assessors, supervisors, promoters and / or
technical advisors of or for any person, company, trust, banks and financial institutions. The registered office of the
Company is situated at Awami Complex, FB-1, Usman Block, New Garden Town, Lahare.

Aequitas Information Services Limited - (the “Associated Company")

Aequitas Information Services Limited (the Compary) was incorporated in Pakistan on March 25, 2016 as a public limited
company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (repealed by the Companies Act, 2017). The Company's registered office
is located at Building 8, Sector B, Commercial Area, Phase V, DHA, Lahore. The main objectives of the Company are to
carry out the business of a Credit Informatien Company for coliecting credit information as permissible by taw relating to
debtors of banks, financial institutions, non-banking financial institutions, nen-financial companies and other lenders or
autherities inciuding retailers, insurance companies, utility providers and also to collect and maintain any credit informaticn,
with respect to individuals, parinerships, corporations, institutions, trusts, estates, cooperatives, associations, Government
or Governmental subdivisions or agencies or any other entity. :

Basis of Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Holding Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one haif of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Holding Company
controls another entity, The Holding Company also assesses existence of control where it does not have more than 50% of
the voting power but is able to govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-facte control, De-facto control may
arise in circumstances where the size of the Holding Company’s voting rights relative to the size and dispersior of holdings
of other shareholders give the Company the power to govern the financial and operating policies, etc?.m

-
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Subsidiary are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Company, They are deconsclidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group consolidated financial statements include the consolidated financial statements of Holding Company ("PACRA"
and its subsidiary & asscciate.

The Helding Company applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred inciudes the fair value of any asset
or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. |dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and centingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Holding
Company recognizes any nen-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition- by-acquisition basis, either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The

consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries are prepared upto the same reporting date
using consistent accounting policies. ’

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date

fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Holding Company is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed 1o be an asset or liability is recognized
in accordance with 1AS 39 either in consolidated statement of profit or loss or as a change to consolidated statement of

comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the fair value of non-
controiling interest ovar the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or {oss.
After initial recognition, is measured at carrying value i.e. cost at the date of acquisition less any accumulated impairment.

The financial statements of subsidiary have been consolidated on line by line basis. All significant inter-company
transactions, balances, income and expenses on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits and losses
resulting from inter-company transactions that are recognized in assets are also eliminated.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on

dispesals to non-contrelling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Holding Company ceases to have contro! any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount fecognized in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying

The Company has entered into a Technical Affiliation Agreement with Lanka Rating Agency Limited (LRA) dated March 28,
2021. Relevant services have been initiated at the beginning of financial year 2020. As a part of the arrangement, LRA is
allocating 15% shareholding to the Company. However, the Company would not pay any consideration for this. The
shareholding has a buy-back option attached to it exercisable after 5 years on successful execution of technical affiliation.
Considering different known/unknown variables attached to the agreement and length of time involved, the management
considers it prudent to not assign any value te such option.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These uncensclidated financial statements
accordance with the accounting and reperting
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

(hereinafter referred to as “financial statements’} have been prepared in
standards as applicable in Pakistan, The accounting and reporting standards

- International Financiat Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issuad by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as nofified under Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

\Nherfe prgvisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed,
[

’}/
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2.2

2.3

2.4

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Standards, interpretations and amendments applicable to the published approved accounting standards

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial period, except for the following new and
amended standards and interpretations effective for annual period beginning on January 01,2021, as listed below:

New standards, interpretations and Amendments effective in the reporting pericd
IAS 39, IFRS 9, IFRS 7, IFR84 & IFRS 16 Interest rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2

The adoption of above new amendments applied for the first time in the period did not have any material impact on the

financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early-adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment
that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation:

IASB
Effective date
(annual years

beginning on or

Standard or Interpretation after)

IFRS 3 Reference to conceptual framework — {Amendments) January 01, 2022
IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment; Proceeds before intended use -~ (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IAS 37 Onerous contracts - costs of fulfilling a contract — (Amendments) January 01, 2022
AIPIFRS 1 & Fees in the 10 per cent' test for derecognition of financial liabitities January 01, 2022
AlIP iFRS @

AP |AS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements January 01, 2022
IAS 1 Classification of fabilities as current or non-current — (Amendments) January 01, 2023
IAS 8 Definition of accounting estimates — Amendments to IAS § - The amendments  January 01, 2023

clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. Also, they clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates

IAS 1 and IFRS Disclosure of accounting policies — Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS practice January 01, 2023
Practice statement 2 - The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy
Statement 2 disclosures that are more useful by ‘Replacing the requirement for entities to

disclose their 'significant' accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their

‘material’ accounting policies; and Adding guidance on how entities apply the

concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction — January 01, 2023
Amendments to IAS 12 - In May 2021, the Board issued amendments to 1AS 12,
which narrow the scope of the initial recognition except under IAS 12, so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

IFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its associate or Joint Not yet finalized
IAS 28 Venture — {(Amendments)

The above amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's financial statements in the period
of initial application.,

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards and coneeptual

framework have also been issued by the IASB. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after January 01, 2022. ' ‘

The Company expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the Company's
financial statements in the period of initial application.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of
applicability in Pakistan.;m
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4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Effective date
{annual years

beginning on or
Standard or Interpretation

after)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01 2023
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of IFRS July 01 2008

The Company expects that above mentioned standards will not have any material impact on the Company's financial
statements in the period of initial application, :

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Basis of measurement
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise stated.
Presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupee, which is the Group's functional and presentation
currency. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan,
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaiuated and are based on the
historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances.
These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that peried or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgments
or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are as follows:

Useful lives, residual vajues, pattern of economic benefits and impairment

Estimates with respect to depreciable lives, residual values and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the
analysis of the management of the Group. Further the Group reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment on an

annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property and
equipment, with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge.

Expected credit loss f loss allowances against trade debts, deposits and other receivables

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractuz! cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash

flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original effective
interest rate.

The Group has efected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on fifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on the Group's historical eredit
loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. When
determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical
experience and informed credit assessment including forward-tooking information.

The maximum pericd considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual pericd over which the Group is

exposed to credit risk. Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected less basis and reflects the short
maturities of the exposures,

The Group reviews its trade receivables at each reporting date to assess whether provision shouid be recorded in the
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5.3

8.1

6.1.1

6.1.1.1

6.2

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Taxation

The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities. Instances where
the Group's views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and where the Group
considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent labilities.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those of
the previous year except as described in Note 2.2

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when services are rendered to the customer, in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group
expects to be entitled to those services excluding sales tax and after deduction of discounts.

Fee income
a) Rating

Revenue from rating services is recognized at point in time when services are rendered to the customer.

b} Monitoring

Revenue attributed to monitoring is recognized over the pericd in which monitoring is performed, generally one year.

Dividends

Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive payment is established.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the effective interest method.,
Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and

leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabifities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation, impairment losses, ang
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recogrized and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets,

Lease liabilities - rented premises

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease paymenis that depend on an index or a

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the'Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made,
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Property and equipment

ltems of property and equipment other than freehold land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Freeho!d land is stated at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation less subsequent
impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates and includes other costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction

including expenditures on material, labor and overheads directly relating to construction, erection and instaliation of property
and eguipment.

Land is recognized at revalued amount based on valuation by external independent valuer, A revaluation surplus credited to

other reserves (capital reserves) in shareholders’ equity and presented as separate line item in statement of financial
position.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land was recognized, in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity. As at year end, the Company does not have any freehold land,

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with specific

assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred
to specific assets as and when these are available for use.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to expense during the period in which these are incurred.

Depreciation charged on alt property and equipment except freehold land, is based on the straight line method so as to write
off the historical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life at rates mentioned in note 15 after taking into account their

residual values. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which these are capitalized, while no depreciation is
charged in the month in which an asset is disposed off. )

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Gains and losses on sale of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the

proceeds from sale with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in statement of
comprehensive income.

Intangible

Intargible asset is stated at cost less accumulated amortization for finite intangible asset and any identified impairment loss.
The estimated useful life and amortization method is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period, with effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Finite intangible assets are amortized using straight-fine method at rates mentioned in note 16 to these unconsolidated
financial statements. Amortization on additions to intangible assets is charged from the month in which an asset is put to
use and cn disposal up to the month of disposal,

Stock in trade

Stocks are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the basis of weighted average method.

Net realizable value is arrived at by considering the technical obsolescence of stocks and the replacement cost thereof in
the ordinary course of business.

Goods in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax, Income tax is recognized in statement of ctomprehensive income except to

the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognized
in other comprehensive income or equity, as the case may be.

Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income for th
account applicable tax credits and tax rebates, if any. The charg

considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years
years,

& year at the current rates of taxation after taking into
e for the current tax also includes adjustrments, where
arising from assessments framed during the year for such

Deferred

The Group accounts for deferred taxation, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences arising on
differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and their
corresponding tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against whi
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to

apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
baiance sheet date,
qﬂ"/
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Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Group at exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
retransiated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items
is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective

interest and payments during the year, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end
of the year.

Nen-monetary assets and liabifities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are retranslated to the functional

currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are net transiated.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in statement of profit or ioss.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and financiat liability are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the Group has a

legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either 1o settle on net basis or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Provision

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or constructive obiigation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. However, provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise of cash and bank balances and short term running finance,

Trade and other payable

These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognized when they are criginated and measured at fair value of
consideration receivable, These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit
loss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss,

Contract Balances

Contract Asset

A contract asset is the right to consideration for rendering of services if the Group performs by providing services to

customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earnad
consideration that is conditional,

Contract Liability

A contract liability is the obligation to render services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration {or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Group render services to the

customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due {whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Related Party Transactions

All transactions involving related parties arising in normal course of business are conducted at arm's length at normat
commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation modes, as admissible,
except in extremely rare circumstances where, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, it is in the interest of the

Group to do so.
Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that

4 gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity,
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Financial assets
Financial assets - initial recognition

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade debts and bank balance that
de net contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade debts that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the

practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15. Refer to the accounting policy in
Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through CCJ, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (8PPIY on the principal amount outstanding.

This assessment is referred to as the SPP| test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate

cash flows. The business mode! determines whether cash flows will result from coliecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or

convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the_ trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset.

The Group’s financial assets include long-term deposits, trade debts, loans and advances, other receivables and bank
balances.

Financial assets - subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financia! assets are classified in four categories:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
{equity instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses {debt instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also c¢lassified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model, Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at fair value through OC!, as described above, debt

instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch,

Financial assets at fair value through proﬂ't or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair vaiue with net
changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to

classify at fair value through QCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognized as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative wouid meet the definition of a derivative: and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or toss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. Reassessment only cccurs if there is either a change in the terms of the

contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset
out of the fair vaiue through profit or loss category.%
'}
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A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The

financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss, -

The Group does not have financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Group. The Group measures financial assets at amortized cost if both cof the
following conditions are met:

* The financial asset is held within a business model with the cbjective.to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows: and .

* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impairad.

The Group's financial assets at amortized costs includes trade debts and other receivables.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated
at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under 1AS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation and are
not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis,

Gains and losses an these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as other income in
the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCl are not subject to impairment assessment,

The Group does not have any financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments).

Financial assets at fair value through QCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses {debt instruments)

The Group measures debt instruments at fair vaiue through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognized in the statement of profit or less and computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortized cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognized in OCI. Upen derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognized in OCl is recycied to profit or loss.

Financial assets - Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized when:

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired: or

- The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Group has

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the assel, the asset is .
recognized to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognizes an

associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated fiability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
cbligations that the Group has retained.cﬂ
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Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the fransferred asset, is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial assets - Impairment

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for al! debt instruments not held at fair valua through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and

all the cash flows that the Group expects 10 receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset's
original effective interest rate.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next
12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since

initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 80 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may alsc consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements

held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

For trade debts, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. The expected credit losses are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss. The impact of ECL on trade debts is disclosed in note 18.

For bank balances, the Group applies a simplified approach in caiculating ECLs based con lifetime expecled credit losses.
The Group reviews internal and external information avaitable for each bank balance to assess expected credit loss and the
likefihood to receive the outstanding contractual amount. The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss however, the impact of ECL on bank balances is immaterial.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities - initial recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up arrangements,
creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other liabilities.

Financial liabilities - subsequent measurement
Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-

method. Gains and losses are r
amortization process.

bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
ecognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are zan
integral part of the EiR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income.

This category applies to long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-

4 up arrangements, creditors, liabiiities
against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other liabilities.

Financial liabilities - derecognition
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Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group operated a defined centributory approved Provident Fund Trust for all its employees, Equal monthly centributions
are made both by the Group and employees at the rate of 6.25% of the basic salary to the Provident Fund Trust. Obligaticn
for contributions to defined contribution plan is expensed as the related service is provided.

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when:

i) there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group; or

fi) there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability, -

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharehoiders of the Group
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued
on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit and loss

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group that would result from conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
inte ordinary shares,

Government grant

Government grants are recognized when there ig reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions shall be complied with, When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on systematic
basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates
to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected usefut life of the related asset.

When a grant related to non monetary asset is received, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal amounts and
released to statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset, based on the pattern of consumption of the
benefits of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments. )

Mark-up bearing borrowings

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at cost representing the fair value of consideration received less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, rmark-up bearing borrowings are stated at original cost less
subsequent repayments, while the difference between the original recognized amounts (as reduced by periodic payments)
and redemption value is recognized in the profit and loss account over the period of borrowings on an effective rate basis.
The borrewing cost an gualifying asset is included in the cost of related asset.

Long term investments

Investment in subsidiary

investment in subsidiary company is measured at cost as per the requirements of IAS-27 'Separate Financial Statements'.
However, at subsequent reporting dates, the Company reviews the carrying arounts of the investmenis and its
recoverability to determine whether there is an indication that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. If such

indication exists the carrying amounts of the investments are adjusted to the extent of impairment loss, Impairment losses
are recognized as an expense in profit and loss account.

Investments in equity instruments of associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not contros. Investments in equity instruments of
associate is measured at cost Jess impairment, if any, in the Group's separate financial statements,

}
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

2022 2021 2022 2021
‘ {Number of shares) Rupees Rupees
Qrdinary shares of Rs 10 each allocated
for consideration paid in cash 1,500,000 1,500,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued
as bonus shares 5,952,900 5,952,900 59,529,000 59,528,000
7.452 900 7,452,800 74,529,000 74,529,000

LSE Financial Services Limited, an associated undertaking holds 2,683,042 (2021 2,683,042) ordinary shares
comprising 38% of the paid up share capital of the Holding Company,

Oirectors hold 3,018,428 (2021: 3,763,718) ordinary shares comprising 41% of total paid up share capital of the Holding
Company. .

Note 2022 2021

LONG-TERM FINANCE - SECURED Rupees Rupees
Bank AL Habib Limited ) 8.1 - 5,836,479
Balance as at 01 July 29,628,170 12,705,843
Receipts during the year - 25,770,131
Repayments during the year {20,345,500) (11,162,200)
Accrued markup 783,263 2,314,495

10,065,933 29,628,170
Accrued markup shown as current liability {783,263) (2,314,496)
Less: Current portion of long-term finance {9,282,670) {21,477,185)
Balance as at 30 June - 5,836,479

The Holding Company has obtained long term finance facility from Bank AL Habib Limited under State Bank of Pakistan
refinance scheme for payment of wages and salaries of workers and employees for the month of April 2020 to June
2020. The facility is repayable in eight equal quarterly instalments, payable quarterly in arrears, commencing after a
grace pericd of 9 months and i carries markup at the rate of 3% per annum. This facility is secured by way of first
hypothecation charge over book debts of the Holding Company for Rs. 65 million and furniture & fixtures of the
Company for Rs. 10 million. Being a loan below market rate of interest, a portion of the loan has beer treated as

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

This represents deferred grant recognized on loan received from Bank AL Habib Limited at below market interest rate
under SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries of Workers and Employees (as described in Note 8).

Movement during the year is as follows: 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Balance as at 01 July 886,056 901,985
Amount recognized as deferred grant during the year - 1,331,869
Amount recognized as income during the year ‘ {783,263) {1,347,798)
102,793 886,056
Less: Current portion of deferred government grant . {102,793) (783,263}

Balance as at 30 June - 102,793

LEASE LIABILITY

The effective interest rate used as the discounting factor {i.e. incremental borrowing rate} is 11%. The amount of future
payments and the period during which they will become due are:

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Period ending 30 June

2022 - 6,956,325
2023 7,478,049 7,478,049
2024 8,038,903 8,038,203
15,516,952 22,473,277
Less: future finance charges (1,236,513) (2,911,429)
) 14,280,439 19,561,848
Less: current maturity shown under current fiabilities (6,462,098) {5,281,409)
7,818,341 14,280,438
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10.1 Maximum lease term for the existing lease contracts is up to 4 years.

10.2  Minimum Lease Payments (MLP) and their Present Value (PV) are as follow:

MLP PV of MLP

(Rupees) {(Rupees)
Due net later than 1 year ‘ 7,478,049 6,457 884
Due later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 8,038,903 7,822,555
15,516,952 14,280,438

103 Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the year:

Note 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Balances as at 01 July 19,561,848 -
Additions during the year - 23,827,180
Markup on lease liabilities 1,674,916 2,205,688
21,236,764 26,032,848
Less: Lease rentals paid {6,956,325) (6,471,000}
Balance as at 30 June 14,280,439 19,561,848
11 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED
Bank AL Habib Limited 11.1 - -
Add : Related acerued mark-up - 268,363
_ ' - 268,363

Less: Accrued mark-up shown as current liability - (268,363)

11.1  This represents utilized balance of running finance facility obtained from Bank AL Mabib Limited against limit of Rs.30
million (2021: Rs 10 million). This facility carries markup at the rate of 3 month KIBOR plus 150 basis points per annum
(2021: 3 month Kibor plus 150 basis points per annum), payable quarterly. This is secured by way of first hypothecation

charge of Rs. 85 million and Rs. 10 million on present and future current assets and furniture & fixtures of the Helding
Company respectively,

Note 2022 2021
12 CONTRACT LIABILITY Ripees Rupees
Advance from customers ' 12.1 29,527,016 10,482,725
Deferred revenue 12.2 68,455,411 48,716,042
97,982,427 59,188,767

121 This represents advance received from customers for future rating of entities,
1, This represents deferred revenue relating to services recognized over time.

12.3 Revenue recognized in the reporting pericd that was inciuded in the contract liabilities balance at the beginring of the
period amounts to Rs. 53.19 million (2021: Rs. 36.28 million).

Note 2022 2021
13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Rupees Rupees
Remuneration and related cost payable 41,101,851 38,871,636
Infrastructure and related cost payables 660,800 459,867
Administrative and related cost payable 3,137,421 3,107,773
Due to related parties 13.1 318,737 -
Sales tax payable 13,251,398 9,362,073
58.470.207 51,801,349
13.1 Due to related parties include
Aequitas Information Services Limited (an associate) 13.1.2 318,737 -

13.1.2 This represents net receivable balance from Aequitas Information Services
expense incurred on behalf of the associated company.
e

Limited which is to be adjusted against
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Commitments

JS Bank Limited has issued performance guarantee on behalf of the Company in favour of Finance Department
of Government of Punjab amounting to Rs. 0.05 million (2021: Rs. 0.05 miltion).

Contingencies

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the “DCIR") issued order dated April 24, 2019 under section 181(1)
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 {the “Ordinance") for the tax year 2014 and 2017 whereby tax amounting to
Rs. 1.85 million and Rs. 1.35 million respectively, for non-deduction of withholding tax was levied. The Holding
Company preferred an appeal on May 23, 2019 before Commissioner inland Revenue {Appeals) [the “CIR(A),
which is pending adjudication. The management expects a favourable outcome in this regard.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the “DCIR") issued order dated May 31, 2021 under section 122(1)
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the “Ordinance”) for the tax year 2015 whereby tax amounting to Rs. 10.1
million on account of disallowance of expenses was levied. The Holding Company preferred an appeal on June
18, 2021 before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [the “CIR(A)"], which is pending adjudication, The
management expects a favourable outcome in this regard.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the “DCIR") issued order dated February 22, 2019 under section
161(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the “Ordinance”) for the tax year 2016 whereby fax amounting to Rs.
2.2 million for non-deduction of withholding tax was levied. The Holding Company preferred an appeal before
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [the “CIR(A)"], which is decided against the Company by confirming the
tax liability of Rs. 0.59 miltion. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal on September 16, 2021 before the

Appeilate Tribunal Inland Revenue (the "ATIR"), which is pending adjudication. The management expects a
favourable outcome in this regard.

The Deputy Commissioner inland Revenue (the "DCIR") issued show cause notice dated January 26, 2021 under
section 181 {1A} of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001 ("the Ordinance") for the tax year 2018 for non-deduction of
withholding tax on expenses and purchases. In compliance to this notes, a reply by the Holding Company has

duly been submitted dated February 17, 2021 which is sl under process. The management expects a
favourable outcome in this regard.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue {the "DCIR") issued show cause notice dated January 27, 2021 under
section 161 (1A) of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001 {"the Ordinance"} for the tax year 2019 and tax year 2020 for
non-deduction of withholding tax on expenses and purchases. No correspondence has been made in respect of

these notices. Since assessing officer was transferred and notices from new officers are still not received. The
management expects a favourable outcome in this regard.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the "DCIR") issued show cause notice dated February 1¢, 2021
under section 161(1A) of the Income Tax Crdinance, 2001 (the “Creinance™} for the tax year 2021 for non-
deduction of withholding tax on expenses and purchases. In compliance to this notice, a reply has duly been

submitted dated February 17, 2021 which is still under process, The management expects a favourable outcome
in this regard.

The Assistant Commissioner Sind Revenue Board (the "ACSR") issued show cause notice dated October 21,

2021 under section 3 & 8 of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act 2011 {the " Act") for the tax period
2017,2018,2019 & 2020 for revenue difference in SRB sales t

994, Against such order an 2ppeal is filed before the worthily Commissioner Appeals.
The management expects a favourable outcome in this regard.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the “DCIR") issued order dated June 23, 2021 under section 122(1)
of t_he Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the “Ordinance”) for the tax year 2015, whereby tax ameunting to Rs. 0.55
millicn on account of disallowance of expenses was levied. The Subsidiary Company preferred an appeal on July

12, 2021 before Commissioner Inland Revenue {Appeals) [the “CIR(A)"), which is pending adjudication. The
management expects a favourabie outcome in this regard%

Y
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

15 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2022
COsT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As at Revaluations Additions Disposals Cost As at For Disposals As at 30 June Book value as Rat
01 July 2021 dusing the year  during the year spos 30 June 2022 01 July 2021 tha year P 2022 at 30 June 2022 ate
B LR R {111 R R R B R kbt 111 - - R R T PP RSP %
Owned
Furniture and fixtures 14,309,631 - 2,852,489 - 17,162,120 7,971,338 1,630,768 - 9,602,126 7,669,994 10-33.33
Office equipment and computers 16,358,879 . 1,951,150 734,745 17,674,984 14,276,061 2,564,846 632,496 13,208,411 4,366,573 10 - 25
Vehicles 2,399,409 . 4,149,800 2,257,000 4,292,209 1,505,909 1,345,286 1,617,516 1,233,679 3,058,631 20
33,067,619 - 8,953,439 2,991,745 39,029,313 20,753,308 5,540,920 2,250,012 24,044,216 14,985,098
2021t
. COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
As at Revaluations Additions during Disposals Oomﬂhw_”hcmq As at For Disposals As al 30 June Book value as al Rat
0t July 2020 during the year the year 5P 01 July 2021 the year o 2021 30 June 2021 ate
30 June 2021
R LR R LT L RuUpges--------s-mu-cuvavuouan I R T mermnnamr e - RUBBES vmmrrr s ar A %
Owned
Freehold land 144,320,000 . - 144,320,000 - - . - - - -
Furniture and fixtures 16,646,005 - 5472165 7,808,532 14,309,631 15,372,207 407,670 7,808,539 7,971,338 6,338,293 10-33.33
Office equipment and computers 18,321,364 - 2,357,645 4,320,430 16,358,579 12,605,129 2,081,352 3,410,430 11,276,06¢ 5082518 10-25
Vehicles 4,633,500 - 76,200 2,311,000 2,399,409 2,368,677 346,365 1,709,133 1,505,909 893,500 20
183,920,878 - 7,908,710 158,759,969 33,067,819 30,346,023 3,335,387 A 12,928,102 20,753,308 12,314,311
Note 2022 2021

15.1 Depreciation charge is allocated as follows: Rupees Rugpees

Infeastructure cost 29 5,544,920 3,335,387
- N Mode of " . .

15,2 Description Cost Accumulated Depreciation NBY Sale proceed Gain/ {loss) disposal Relationship with buyer Particulars of Buyer
Toyola Corolla LEB-17A-5804 2,257,000 1,617,516 639,483 2,900,000 2,260,517 Negotiations Others Mr, Saleemn Akhtar
Office equiprnent 734,745 632,496 102,249 2,000 {100,249} Negoliations Others Miscelfaneous
Glhers {fully Dapreciation assels) 160,000 100,000 . 59,000 59,000 Negoliations Others Miscellangous

2,991,745 2,991,745 741,732 2,902,000 2,219,268

w1y
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Windows and MS office software

Accounting software

Windows and MS office software

Rating software
Accounting software

Dalabase software

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Amortization charge has been allocated as follows:

tnfrastructure cost

DPora 20 ~f T4

2022
COSsT ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION Net book
As at Additions Disposals As at As at As at vaiue as at
0t July during the during the 30 June 01 July For the year Disposals 30 June 30 June
2021 year year 2022 2021 2022 2022 Rate
B LT === RUpgES v cmer i caiaaaeas el Terrreesscaas- RUPEES - - - a-- %
343,000 - - 343,000 343,000 - . 343,000 - 33.33
1,031,074 - . 1,031,074 802,895 95,047 - 897,942 133,132 33.33
1,374,074 . - 1,374,074 1,145,895 96,047 - 1,240,942 133,132
2021
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION Net baok
As at Additions Disposals - - - As at As al As at value as a!
01 July during the during the 30 dune 01 July For the year Disposals 30 June 30 June
2020 year year 2021 2022 2021 2021 Rate
.................... R R R LR £ 11 +T-1- T %
1,250,644 - 907,644 343,600 1,247,481 3,163 907,644 343,000 - 33.33
1,912,960 - 1,912,960 - 1,812,960 - 1,912,960 - - 3333
932,930 228,144 130,000 1,031,074 681,208 251,687 130,000 802,895 228,179 33.33
4,000.000 - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 - 4,000,060 - - 33.33
8,096,534 228,144 5,950,604 1.374,074 7.841,649 254,850 5,950,604 1,145,895 228,179
Note 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
29 85,047 254,850

A



THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

2022 2021
17 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET Rupees Rupees
Balances as at 01 July 17,870,370 -
Additions during the year ‘ - 23,827,160
Less: depreciation {5,956,790) {5,956,790)
Balance as at 30 June 11,913,580 17,870,370
17.1  These include 1 leasehold building having 2 floors situated at Awami Complex, F8-1, Usman Block, Garden Town,
Lahore.
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
18 Cost of investment
Aequitas Information Services Limited
10,000,000 (2021: 10,000,000) fully paid shares of Rs. 10 each 100,000,000 100,000,000

Share of loss

As at 01 July (30,715,148) (21,304,235)
Share of loss for the year {177,257) (8,569,085)
Share of other comprehensive loss {141,641) (841,828)
As at 30 June {31,034,047) (30,715,148)
~ Netinvestment as at 30 June 68,965,953 69 264,852

The Holding Company owns 10 milion (2021: 10 million) fully paid shares at the rate of Rs. 10 each resulting in total 20%
equity investment in Aequitas Information Services Limited and accordingly has classified this interest as investment in
associate. The registered cffice of Aequitas Information Services Limited is situated at Building 8, Commercial Area,

Phase V, DHA, Lahore, Pakistan. The investment has been made in accordance with the requirements under
Companies Act 2017.

Summarized financial information in respect of Aequitas Information Services Limited, an associated company, on the
basis of audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 are set out below:

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Non current assets 430,836,516 376,164,945

Current assets 94,073,161
Non current liabilities {29,608,701)

 Current liabilities (150,520,210

67,930,045
(27,645,167)
(70,026,464)

Net assets - 100%

344,829,766 346,424,259
Percentage ownership interest 20% 20%
Group's share of net assets representing carrying amount of 68,965,953 69,284,852
interest in associated company
Revenue from contracts with customers-net 188,936,288 87,750,070
Loss after taxation for the year (886,287) (42,845 425)
Other comprehensive loss {708,206) (4,208,139)
Total comprehensive loss for the year from continuing operations ' (318,899} {9,410,913)

-
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Deductible temporary difference

Accelerated tax depreciation /
Amortization allowances

Provision for expected credit losses
Payable to provident fund

Lease liabilities - net

Deductible temporary difference

Accelerated {ax depreciation /
Amortization allowances

Provision for expected credit losses
Payable to provident fund
Contract liability

L ease liabilities - net

2022

{Charge) / credit to profit

Credit to other

Closing balance

Opening balance L
or loss comprehensive income
mmmeremmummaan==sunae RUPEES v mmmmmwmmmwcwmmmeam o

1,043,556 (618,299} - 425,257

1,430,345 576,489 - 2,006,834

124,810 {30,110) - 94,700

487,782 198,607 - 686,389

3,086,493 126,687 - 3,213,180

2021

Opening balance

(Charge) / credit to profit or

Credit to other

Closing balance

loss comprehensive income
..................... Rupees----------w----=---~-
257,463 786,093 - 1,043,556
1,620,268 {189,923) - 1,430,345
383,664 {258,854) - 124,810
8,366,200 {8,366,200) -
- 487,782 487,782
10,627,595 (7,541,102) - 3,086,493
13-
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Note 2022 2021

TRADE DEBTS - UNSECURED Rupees Rupees
Trade debts 86,723,826 101,234,958
Less: Provision for expected credit loss 20.1 - (6,997,082) (4,959,008)

79,726,744 96,274,859
The movement in provision for expected credit loss is as follows:
Balance as at 01 July 4,959,999 5,618,902
Charge for the year 4,753,087 1,862,776
Trade debts written-off (2,716,004) (2,521.679)

2,037,083 {658,903)

Balance as at 30 June 6,997,082 4,958,999

CONTRACT ASSET

This includes cost of provisioning of services by the Group to the customers, but right to receive payments

against such geods and services has not yet been established.

Note 2022 2021
RECEIVABLE FROM RELATED PARTIES Rupees Rupees
Aequitas Information Services Limited - share deposit money 12,733,007 -
Aequitas Information Services Limited - Accrued markup 1,113,690 250,160
Analytics (Private) Limited - Reimbursement 327,099 537,375
222 14,173,796 787,535
This relates to an amount receivable on account of common expenditures incurred.
The maximum aggregate amount outstanding from related paries at any time during the year was:
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Aequitas Information Services Limited 13,846,697 -
Analytics (Private) Limited 327,099 537,375
Age analysis of receivable from related parties, past due but not impaired is as follows:
Note 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
C to 8 months 14,173,796 787,535
6 to 12 months " B
Above 12 months - -
14,173,796 787,535
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE-UNSECURED
Loan to Aequitas Information Services Limited 23.1 30,000,000 -
Add : Related accrued mark-up 1,113,690 2,603,861
31,113,690 2,603,861
Less: Accrued mark-up (1,113,690) (2,603,861)
30,000,000 -
Balance as at 01 July - 30,000,000
Payments during the year 30,000,000 -
Shares issued - {30,000,000)
Balance as at 30 June 30,000,000 -
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27.2

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

This represents loan given to Aequitas Information Services Limited (AISL) for the purpose of bridging AISL's
cash shortfall till injection of new equity. The loan was given on 18th January 2022. The tenure of the lcan will
be one year from the date of disbursement. The current markup rate is three month KIBOR plus 300 bps. As
per the agreement the markup rate will be three month KIBOR plus 300 bps or at the rate paid by Aequitas
Information Services Limited to its other sponsor shareholder, whichever is higher. Any delay in payment would
yield a service charge of 1% per month.

Note 2022 2021
ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS Rupees Rupees
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advances - unsecured, considered good
- 1o employees 6,286,168 124,428
- {0 suppliers 481,257 709,503
6,767,425 833,929
Sales tax receivable 7,858,882 5,688,630
Prepayments 2,450,651 1,663,129
Mark up receivable on short term investments (MTBs) 763,772 -
Others 166,755 166,755
18,007,485 8,352 443
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Investment in Government securities 25.1 59,963,620 -

This relates to investment in treasury bills by the Holding Company. They carry yield ranging from 10.2% to
12.4% {2021: Nil) per annum. These Treasury bills have maturity period of 3 months. These Government
securities have an aggregate face value of Rs. 82 million (2021: Nil)

Note 2022 2021
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupees Rupees
Local currency - deposits and saving accounts 28.1 34,122,718 90,601,384

These carries mark up ranging from 86.5% to 13% (2021: 5.5% t0 6.5%) per annum.

Note 2022 2021
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET Rupees Rupees
Income from rating business
- domestic 352,052,187 309,430,218
- foreign 1,610,740 1,510,795
353,662,927 310,841,013
Income from non rating business
- domestic 271 13,866,805 5,327,883
- foreign 8,997,465 -
22,864,270 5,327,883
Less: Provincial Sales tax {51,457,952) (44,338,366)
272 325,069,245 271,930,530

During the year, there were no clients who along with their associates contributed ten percent (10%) or more of

the non-rating revenue of the Group.

Disaggregation of Fees income

in the following table fees income from contracts with customers is disaggregated primarily by types of rating

and timing of revenue recognition,
3
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28.1

29

30

30.1

Type of rating services

Entity rating
Instrument rating
Fund rating

Type of Non rating services
Censultancy services
Credit Risk Assessment Training

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue recognized at a point in time
Revenue recognized over - time

REMUNERATION COST

Staff salaries & other banefits

Retired employees benefits

External rating committee member fee
Advisory/Consultancy fee

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Note 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
216,864,810 | 188,980,745
63,650,155 55,847,779
23,228,409 22,231,253
303,743,374 267,058,777
12,889,146 2,000,000
8,436,725 2,870,753
325,069,245 271,930,530
272,516,638 225,583 445
52,552,607 48,347,085
325,069,245 271,930,530
281 151,259,864 134,048,578
1,041,168 1,056,866
6,850,000 7,600,000
1,660,313 -
160,811,345 142,705 444

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 4.25 million (2021: Rs. 2.53 millicn) in respect of contribution to

provident fund,

INFRASTRUCTURE COST

Rent, rates and taxes

Technology & related expenses

Repair & Maintenance

Depreciation on property and equipment
Amortization on intangible assets
Depreciation on right of use asset
Others

ADMINISTRATIVE COST

Directors meeting expenses

Legal & professional charges
Entertainment and related expenses
Travelling, food and accommodation
Auditor's remuneration

Tax advisory, consultancy & fees
Communication and related expenses
Promotional expenses

Others

This relates to the meeting fee paid to Directors of the Holdin

the year.
Ll

Note 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
2,734,233 1,804,341
2,183,563 1,559,617
4,328,754 4,682,135
5,540,920 3,335,387
95,047 254,850
5,956,790 5,858,790
1,561,690 986,702
25,791,974 21,067.623
30.1 3,616,774 2,023,007
1,753,187 5,795,900
3,836,297 2,916,664
3,050,835 2,427 583
900,000 648,750
1,031,499 710,470
907,211 928,137
1,739,164 1,203,989
914,519 1,384,656
17,749,485 18,049,196
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33

331
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34.1

34.2

OTHER INCOME

Inceme from financial assets:

Mark-up based income from conventional banks:

Mark-up on savings accounts
Unwinding of Government grant

Mark-up on loan given to associate

Profit on short term investment
Exchange gain

Income from non-financial assets:

Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Reimbursement from clients
Miscellaneous income

FINANCE COST

Mark-up on long term borrowings
Mark-up on short term borrowings
Finance cost on lease liability
Bank charges

TAXATION
Current tax

Current year
Pricr year

Deferred tax

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Reconciliation between accounting profit and taxation

Profit before taxation

Tax at applicable rate of 29% (2021: 29%)

Tax effect of deductions
Deferred taxation impact

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit after tax

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the year

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

Basic earnings per share has been calculated by dividing the profi
weighted average number of ordinary shares.

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
5,094,869 327,667
783,263 1,347,798
1,908,452 2,603,861
2,034,455 -
- 406,000
9,821,040 4,685,326
2,219,268 18,227,633
4,730,010 2,989,128
119,954 203,020
7,069,231 21,419,781
16,890,271 26,105,107
1,344,549 2,314,497
- 1,270,462
1,674,916 2,205,688
73,182 137,904
3,092,647 5,928,551
37,501,220 27,207,341
- 30,367
37,501,220 27,237,708
{126,687) 7,541,102
37,374,534 34.778,810
129,583,721 98,852,962
37,579,279 28,957,359
(78,058) (1,719,651)
(126,687) 7,541,102
37,374,534 34,778,810
92.209.187 85,074,152
7.452.900 7,452 900
12.37 8.73

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Group.

oy
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35 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in these consolidated financial statements for the year for remuneration, including certain benefits to the Chief Executive, Directors
and other Executives of the Group are as follows:

Chief Executive Non - Executive directors Executives
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

esmmmmemammmsme e an e ———————— maruunm—— urmmneeee RUPEES —emermmnmmnaan T B
Managerial remuneration 22,956,861 21,614,278 - - 75,141,450 43,347 685
Conltribution to provident fund 1,043,139 977,922 - - 2,578,032 1,966,358
Bonus 8,000,000 5,347,812 - - 11,207,994 7,950,426
Meeting fee - - 3,616,774 2,023,007 - -
Reimbursable expenses 208,130 250,403 - - 515,689 383,623
Total 32,208,130 28,090,415 3,616,774 2,023,007 89,443,165 53,648,093
Numbers 1 1 "B 7 45 25

I3
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

36 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

Balances and transactions with related parties are as follows:

Associated company (20% owned)

Aequitas Information Services Limited

On account of:

Investment in associate during the year

On account of:

Amount given on account of lcan

Expense paid on behalf of related party

Expenses paid by related party on behalf of Company
“Wark-up on loan charged to related party

Markup paid by related party

Receivabie from related party - unsecured

Post employment benefif plans / Other related parties

On account of:
Contributions fo Provident Fund Trust
Year end payable balance
Provident fund
Directors
- Muhammad Adnan Afaq (10% equity held)
On account of:
Dividend paid
Meeting fee
Mr. Shahzad Saleem, CEO
On account of:
Remuneration

Year end payable balance

Salary payable
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2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
- 30,000,000
30,000,000 -
1,266,500 1,133,492
1,595,237 632,276
1,908,452 2,603,861
794,762 2,254,681
{794,953) {250,180)
4,254,802 4. 151,818
793,336 700,948
8,198,190 15,278,445
40,000 200,000
22,956,861 27,823,024
- 1,875,000

Y



THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

2022 2021
Mumtaz Hussain Syed (27% equity held) Rupees Rupees

On account of:

Dividend paid 22,135,080 41,251,740

Meeting fee : 460,000 -

Sardar Ali Watto (13.5% equity held)

On account of:

Dividend paid ‘ 11,067,551 20,625,891
Meeting Fee 615,000

Usman Haider (13.5% Equity held)

On account of:

"~ Dividend paid 11,067,540 20,625,870
Meeting Fee

Other Directors (0.00930% equity held)
On account of:
Dividend paid ' 77 24

Meeting fee 2,270,000 1,120,000

Share holders holding more than 20% equity:

Lahore Stock Exchange (36% Equity held)

On account of:

. Jividend paid 29,513,462 55,002,361

Key Management Personnel (other than directors)

Mr. Shahzad Saleem, CEQ
On account of:

Remuneration 22,956,861 21,514,278

-
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, fereign currency risk and interest rate risk. The
management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

3741 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss. The Group attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with
specific counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterpadies are engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic
features that would cause their abiiity to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other

conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance o developments affecting a particutar
industry.

The Group is exposed ¢ credit risk on trade debts, deposits, other receivables and bank balances. The Group seeks to minimize the
credit risk exposure through having exposures only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities where applicable. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

Carrying Values

Note 2022 2021
: {Rupees) (Rupees)
Trade debts - unsecured ’ 20 79,726,744 96,274,959
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 24 18,007,485 8,352,443
Advance income tax - net 34,603,221 27,873,509
Cash and bank balances 26 34,122,718 90,601,394
166,460,168 223,102,305

3711 Trade debts

Analysis of trade debts that are neither past due nor impaired and that are past due but not impaired is described in Note 20

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns {i.e., by geographical region,
product type, customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the probabiiity-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supporiable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financia!

assets. The Group does not hold collateral as security. The letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance are considered integral
part of trade receivables and considered in the calculation of impairment.

Set out below is the infermation about the credit risk exposure on the Group’s trade debts using a provision matrix:

0-90 days 91180 days 181-270 days Over 271 days 365 and above Total
As at 30 June 2022
Expected credit loss rate 0.9% 30.2% - - - -
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at
defauit 65,696,148 20,850,714 - - - 86,646,860
Expected credit loss 584,079 6,326,038 - - - 6,920,116
0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270days  Over271 days 365 and above Total
As at 30 June 2021
Expected credit loss rate 0.4% 6.7% 19.3% 13.0% 100.0% -
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at
default 64,965,293 27,482,996 4,584,874 2.577.811 1,619,984 101,234,958
Expectad credit loss 290,929 1,828,235 885,233 335518 1,618,984 4,959,699

&3
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Rating : Rating Agency 2022 2021
Bank balances Short Term Long Term (Rupees) (Rupees)
Bank Al Mabib ' Asl+ AA+ PACRA 34,122,718 90,601,394
34,122,718 90,601,394

Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group applies prudent risk
management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and by keeping committed credit lines, The table below
summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the following reporting dates:

Year ended Less than 3 Jto12
30 June 2022 On demand months months 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
Amount in Rupees

Short term barrowing- - -

secured

Contract liability - 97,982,427 - - - 97,982,427

Current pertion of leng 9,282,670 - - - - 9,282,670

term finance

Current portion of lease - - 6,462,098 7,818,341 - 14,280,439

liabilities

Accrued mark-up 866,413 - - - - 866,413

Trade and other payables 58,470,207 - - - “ 58,470,207
68,619,200 97,982,427 6,462,098 7,818,341 - 180,882,158

Year ended Less than 3
30 June 2021 On demand months 3to 12 months 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
Amount in Rupees

Short term berrowing- - - - - - .

secured ‘

Contract liability - 59,198,767 - - - 59,198,767

Current portion of long 22,260,458 - - - - 22,260,458

term finance

Current portion of lease - - 5,281,409 14,280,439 - 19,561,848

liabilities

Accrued mark-up 268,383 - - - - 268,363

Trade and other payables 46,189,685 - . : - - 45,189,685
68,718,506 59,198,767 5,281,409 14,280,439 - 147,479,121

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rate.

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the fund obtained from parent company with
floating interest rates.

(Increase} / decrease Effect on profit before tax
in basis points 2022 2021
{Rupees) (Rupees)
+100 3,412,272 9,080,139
-100 (3,412,272} (9,060,139)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of all financial assets and fabilities reflected in the financial statements a

‘ _ ncia : pproximate their fair vaive, Fair value is
determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date. '
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

2022
Long term _Le:a:s? Dividend Total
finances liahilities payable
------------ Rupges ~==nmucuauns

Balance as at 01 July 28,199,730 19,561,848 - 47,764,578
Lashflows

Long term loans repaid net of repayment {18,814,267) - - (18,814,267)
Lease liabilities - net - (5,281,409) - {5,281,409)
Dividend declared - - 81,981,900 81,981,900
Dividend paid - - (81,981,900) (81,881,900)
Balance as at 30 June 9,385,463 14,280,439 - 23,665,902

2021
Long term Lease liabilities Dividend Total
finances payable
[ e emeoo o Rupees -~---~--u---

Balance as at 01 July 9,945,534 - - $,945,534
Cashfiows

Long term loans obtained net of repayment 18,254,196 - - 18.254,196
Lease liabilities - net - 19,561,848 - 19,561,848
Dividend declared - - 152,784,450 152,784,450
Dividend paid - - (152,784,450)  (152,784,450)
Balance as at 30 June 28,189,730 19,561,848 - 47,761,578

Capital risk management

The Board's pelicy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence znd to sustain the
future development of its business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed, which the Group defines as
operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directars also monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

{) to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, sc that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, and

{iiy to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In

order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to sharghelders, issue new shares,
or sell assets to reduce debt.

imposed capital requirements.
<k i

Neither there were any changes in the Group's approach to capital management during the year nor the Group is subject to externally
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

The following information is based on latest un-audited financial statements of the Fund:

Un-audited Audited
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Size of the fund - Total assets. 41,008,162 35,118,058
Cost of investments made 39,928,265 34,347,358
Percentage of investments made 97.36% 97.81%
Fair value of investments 41,784,511 34,347,358
The break-up of fair value of investments is:
2022 2021
Rupees % Rupees %
Government Securities 32,000,000 T7% - -
Deposit and saving accounts 9,784,511 23% 14,347,358 42%
Term deposit receipts - - 20,000,000 58%
41,784,511 100% 34,347 358 100%

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

NUMEBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total and average number of employees during the year and as at June 30 are as follows:

2022 2021
~---(No. of employees)-—-
Average number of employees during the year | 75 74
Number of employees as at 30 June : 30 80

CHANGE IN PRESENTATION

As per IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements' the Group has the option to present its statement of
comprehensive income either as ‘nature of expense method’ or ‘cost of sale method'. Curing the year, the Group
has changed the presentation of statement of comprehensive income to ‘nature of expense method' and
aggregated expenses within profit or loss according to their nature.

Accordingly, due to change in presentation, corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified
wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison. The following materiat reclassifications were made:

Reclassification from Reclassification to

2021
Rupees
Direct cost Remuneration cost 91,838,207
Infrastructure cost 11,756,020
Administrative cost Remuneration cost 51,141,708
Infrastructure cost 13,661,835

Since, }'hese reclassification adjustments do not have a material effect on the information at the beginning of the
preceding period, therefore third statement of financial position as at the beginning period has not been presentad.

13
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
43. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements were authorized for issue on by the Board of Directors of the
Group,, o
“ra

. o

Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June
2022

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of The Pakistan Credit
Rating Agency Limited (the Company), which comprise the unconsolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2022, the unconsolidated statement of comprenensive
income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and
we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of ou:
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the
unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required
and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June
2022 and of the total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Directors' report, but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and auditor's
report thereon.

Qur opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereong
V-




In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is n'ecessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis cf
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control,
"Uj;p -




Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XiX of 2017);

b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the
unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the unconsolidated notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (X!} of
2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns:

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company's business; and

d) No zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980
(XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’'s reportis Abdullah
Fahad Masood.

&M Vol Deorden

EY Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountants

Lahore: 07 October 2022

UDIN: AR202210177SfKQX8PKG




THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2022
Note 2022 2021
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Rupees Rupees
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capital
12,500,000 (30 Jun 2021: 12,500,000)
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 125,000,000 125,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 7 74,529,000 74,529,000
Accumulated profits 93,288,208 84,789,611
167,817,208 159,318,611
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term finance - secured 8 - 5,836.479
Deferred Government grants 9 - 102,793
Lease liabilities 10 7,818,341 14,280,439
7,818,341 20,218,711
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long-term finance - secured 8 9,282,670 21,477,195
Current-portion of deferred Government grants 9 102,793 783.263
Current-portion of lease liabilities 10 6,462,098 5,281,409
Short-term borrowings -secured 11 - -
Accrued markup 866,414 2,582,859
Contract liability 12 95,825,187 57,684,974
Provision for taxation 36,865,909 27,077,152
Trade and other payables 13 83,060,867 67,812,587
232,465,938 182,689,439
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 408,101,487 362,237.761
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 14
ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment 15 14,985,098 12,314,311
Intangible assets 16 133,132 228,178
Right-of-use asset 17 11,913,580 17,870,370
Long term investments 18 100,100,000 100,100,000
Long term deposits 1,335,300 1,335,300
Deferred taxation 19 3,213,180 3.086.493
131,680,290 134,834,653
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade debts - unsecured 20 79,013,345 93,384,651
Contract assets 21 - 2,988,905
Receivable from related parties 22 21,676,828 4,316,487
Loan to an associate - unsecured 23 30,000,000 -
Advances, prepayments & other receivables 24 17,749,238 8,140,080
Advance income tax 33,904,599 27,871,591
Short term investment 25 59,963,620 -
Cash and bank balances 26 34,113,567 90,601,384
276,421,197 227,303,108
TOTAL ASSETS 408,101,487 362,237,761
The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements. 5
Alolear 17
e f
~9 /
Chief Executive Director
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Revenue from contracts with customers -net
Remuneration cost

Infrastructure cost

Administrative cost

Operating profit

Provision for expected credit losses on trade debts
Other income

Finance cost

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income for the year

ltems that may be reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent period

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent period

Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

Note 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
27 316,632,521 269,059,777
28 (159,351,032) (140,953,559)
20 (25,791,974) (21,067,623)|
30 (16,069,234) (17,155,343)
(201,212,240) (179,176,525)
115,420,281 89,883,252
20.1 (4,714,604) (1,862,776)
31 19,606,692 25,682,363
32 (3,092,647) (5.928,319)
127,219,722 107,774,520
33 (36,739,224) (34,599,512)
90,480,498 73,175,008
90,480,498 73.175.008
12.14 9.82

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements..

Ahafed Al o

Chief Executlve
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Balance as on 01 July 2020
Total comprehensive income for the period

Profit after taxation
Revaluation surplus transferred 1o accumulated profits
Other comprehensive income

Transaction with owners

Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2020 at the
rate of Rs 3 per share

Intenm dividend for the year ended 30 June 2021 at
the rate of Rs 5 per share

Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2021 at
the rate of Rs 12.5 per share

Balance as on 30 June 2021
Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit after taxation
Other comprehensive Income

Transaction with owners

Interim dividend for the year ending 30 June 2022 at
the rate of Rs 5 per share

Interim dividend for the year ending 30 June 2022 at
the rate of Rs 6 per share

Balance as on 30 June 2022

Issued, Capital reserve || Revenue Reserve
subscribed and Surplus on
paid-up share revaluation of Accug:::ted Ll
capital freehold land p
Rupees

74,529,000 81,945,420 82,453,632 238,928,052
- - 73,175,008 73,175,008
- (81,945,420) 81,945.420 -
- (81,945,420) 155,120,428 73,175,008
- - (22,358.700) (22,358.,700)
- - (37.264.500) (37.264,500)
- - (93.161.250) (93.161.250)
g - (152,784,450) (152,784.450)

74,529,000 - 84,789,610 159,318,610
- - 90,480,498 90,480,498
- - 90,480,498 90,480,498
- = (37,264,500) (37,264,500)
. - (44,717,400) (44,717, 400)
- - (81,981,900) (81,981,900)

74,529,000 - 93,288,208 167,817,208

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Abelad Aokey~

Chief Eucutlve
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Note 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Profit before taxation 127,219,722 107,774,320
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property and equipment & amortization 5,635,967 3,590,237
Depreciation on right of use asset 17 5,956,790 5,856,780
Finance cost 32 3,092,647 5,928,319
Mark-up on saving accounts (5,062,111) (310.923)
Profit on short term investment (2,034,455) -
Services charged to PACRA Analytics (2,749,179) -
Gain on disposal of fixed assets (2,219,268) (18,227.633)
Unwinding of Government grant 31 (783,263) (1,347.798)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade debts 201 4,714,604 1,862,776
Exchange loss - 9.832
133,771,454 105,235,920
Working capital changes
~ (Increase) / decrease in current assets
- Trade debts 11,519,478 21,673,553
- Advances, Prepayments & others (26,205,727) (1,525,164)
- Contract Asset 2,988,905 (950,294)
(11,697,344) 19,198,095
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
- Trade and other payables 15,182,858 8,034,530
- Contract liability 38,140,213 17,521,216
53,323,071 25,555,746
Cash generated from operations 175,397,181 148,989,761
Finance cost paid (258,395) (2,487.890)
Income tax paid (33,443,887) (27.,640,927)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 141,694,899 118,860,544
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment 15 (8,953,439) (7,906,710)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment 15.2 2,902,000 164,058,500
~ Purchase of intangible assets - (228,144)
Loan to associates (30,000,000) -
Short term investment made (59,963,620) -
Interest received 6,332,794 310,923
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (B) (89,682,265) 156,235,569
Cash flow from financing activities
Long term finance obtained - 18,254,396
Long term finance paid (19,562,236) -
Lease rentals paid (6,956,325) (6,716.712)
Dividend paid (81,981,900) (152,784.450)
Net cash used in financing activities (€) (108,500,461) (141,246,766)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C) (56,487,827) 134,849,747
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 90,601,394 (44,248,353)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 34,113,567 90,601,384

The annexed notes 1 to 43 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Alabgd Az

Chief Executive
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

3.1

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited ("the Company”) was incorporated as a private limited company in Pakistan on
18 August 1984 and converted into a public limited company on 30 April 2004. The business of the Company is to carry out
risk evaluation of companies and specific instruments. The evaluation is expressed in terms of assigned credit rating to the
entity or the instrument reflecting the capacity to honor its debt or other fixed term obligations. The registered office of the
Company is situated at Awami Complex, FB-1, Usman Block, New Garden Town, Lahore.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited is part of PACRA Group which consist of:

Subsidiary company % age of direct % age of effective
shareholding shareholding

PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited 100% 100%

Associated company

Aequitas Information Services Limited 20% 20%

The registered office of the PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited is situated at Awami Complex, FB-1, Usman Block, New
Garden Town, Lahore. The objectives of the Company are to carry on business as management & financial consultants, risk
managers, project manager, trust consultants, planners, advisors, surveyors, assessors, supervisors and / or technical
advisors of or for any person, company, trust, banks and financial institutions.

The registered office of Aequitas Information Services Limited is situated at Building 8, Sector B, Commercial Area, Phase V,
DHA, Lahere. The main objectives of the Company are to carry out the business of a Credit Information Company for
collecting credit information as permissible by law relating to debtors.

These unconsclidated financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investment in
subsidiary and investment in associate are accounted for on cost basis rather than on the basis of reported results.
Consolidated financial statements are prepared separately.

The Company has entered into a Technical Affiliation Agreement with Lanka Rating Agency Limited (LRA) dated March 26,
2021. Relevant services have been initiated at the beginning of financial year 2020. As a part of the arrangement, LRA is
allocating 15% shareholding to the Company. However, the Company would not pay any consideration for this. The
shareholding has a buy-back option attached to it exercisable after 5 years on successful execution of technical affiliation.
Considering different known/unknown variables attached to the agreement and length of time involved, the management
considers it prudent to not assign any value to such option.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These unconsolidated financial statements (hereinafter referred to as 'financial statements') have been prepared in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Standards, interpretations and amendments applicable to the published approved accounting standards

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial period, except for the following new and
amended standards and interpretations effective for annual period beginning on January 01,2021, as listed below:

New standards, interpretations and Amendments effective in the reporting period

IAS 38, IFRS 8, IFRS 7. IFRS 4 & IFRS 16 Interest rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2
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3.2

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
The adoption of above new amendments applied for the first time in the period did not have any material impact on the

financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early-adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment
that has been issued but is not yet effective.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation:

IASB
Effective date
(annual years
beginning on or
Standard or Interpretation after)
IFRS 3 Reference to conceptual framework — (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment: Proceeds before intended use — (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IAS 37 Onerous contracts - costs of fulfilling a contract — (Amendments) January 01, 2022
AIPIFRS 1 & Fees in the "10 per cent' test for derecognition of financial liabilities January 01, 2022
AIP IFRS 9
AlP IAS 41 Agriculture — Taxation in fair value measurements January 01, 2022
IAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current — (Amendments) January 01, 2023
IAS 8 Definition of accounting estimates — Amendments to IAS 8 - The amendments January 01, 2023

clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. Also, they clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates

IAS 1 and IFRS Disclosure of accounting policies — Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS practice  January 01, 2023
Practice statement 2 - The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy
Statement 2 disclosures that are more useful by 'Replacing the requirement for entities to

disclose their 'significant' accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their

'material’ accounting policies; and Adding guidance on how entities apply the

concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting palicy disclosures.

IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction — January 01, 2023
Amendments to IAS 12 - In May 2021, the Board issued amendments to I1AS 12,
which narrow the scope of the initial recognition except under 1AS 12, so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

IFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its associate or Joint Not yet finalized
IAS 28 Venture — (Amendments)

The above amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's financial statements in the period
of initial application.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards and conceptual
framework have also been issued by the IASB. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after January 01, 2022.

The Company expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the Company's
financial statements in the period of initial application.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of
applicability in Pakistan.

Effective date
(annual years
beginning on or

Standard or Interpretation after)
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01 2023
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of IFRS July 01 2009
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5.1

52

5.3

5.4

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

The Company expects that above mentioned standards will not have any material impact on the Company's financial
statements in the period of initial application.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Basis of measurement

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise stated.

Presentation currency

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pak Rupee, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan,
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on the
historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the peried of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements
There is no significant judgement invalved in the preparation of these uncaonsolidated financial statements.
Significant estimates and assumptions

Estimates with respect to depreciable lives, residual values and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the
analysis of the management of the Company. Further the Company reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment
on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property
and equipment, with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge.

Expected credit loss / loss allowances against trade debts, and other receivables (as explained in note 6.12)

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the assets’ criginal
effective interest rate.

The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based cn lifetime ECLs. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. When
determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reascnable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's
historical experience and informed credit assessment including forward-looking information.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is
exposed to credit risk. Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis and reflects the short
maturities of the exposures.

The Company reviews its trade receivables at each reporting date to assess whether provision should be recorded in the
statement of profit or loss. In particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows when determining the level of provision required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a
number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provisions.

Taxation

The Company takes intc account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities. Instances where
the Company's views differ from the views taken by the income tax department at the assessment stage and where the
Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent
liabilities (Note:14) ;

€Y

Page 7 of 32




6.1
6.1.1

6.1.1.1

6.1.2

6.1.3

6.2

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are consistent with those of
the previous year except as described in Note 3.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when services are rendered to the customer, in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to be entitled to those services excluding sales tax and after deduction of discounts. Specific revenue and
other income recognition policies are as follows:

Fee income
a) Rating

Revenue from rating services is recognized at point in time when services are rendered to the customer
b) Menitoring

Revenue attributed to monitoring is recognized over the period in which monitoring is performed, generally one year.
Dividends

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the effective interest method.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation, impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognized and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis aver the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Lease liabilities - rented premises

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.

In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, 2
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

-
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6.4

6.5

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
Property and equipment

Items of property and equipment other than freehold land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation less subsequent
impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates and includes other costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction
including expenditures on material, labor and overheads directly relating to construction, erection and installation of property
and equipment.

Land is recognized at revalued amount based on valuation by external independent valuer. A revaluation surplus credited to

other reserves (capital reserves) in shareholders' equity and presented as separate line item in statement of financizal
position.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of land was recognized, in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in reserves in shareholders’ equity. As at year end, the Company does not have any freehold land.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with specific
assets incurred during installation and construction peried are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred
to specific assets as and when these are available for use.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to expense during the period in which these are incurred.

Depreciation charged on all property and equipment except freehold land, is based on the straight line methed se as to write
off the historical cost of an asset over its estimated useful life at rates mentioned in note 15 after taking into account their
residual values. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which these are capitalized, while no depreciation is
charged in the month in which an asset is disposed off.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Gains and losses on sale of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the

proceeds from sale with the camying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized in statement of
comprehensive income.

Intangible

Intangible asset is stated at cost less accumulated amortization for finite intangible asset and any identified impairment loss.
The estimated useful life and amortization method is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting pericd, with effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Finite intangible assets are amortized using straight-line method at rates mentioned in note 18 to these unconsolidated
financial statements. Amortization on additions to intangible assets is charged from the month in which an asset is put to use
and on disposal up to the month of disposal.

Stock in trade

Stocks are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on the basis of weighted average method.
Net realizable value is arrived at by considering the technical obsolescence of stocks and the replacement cost thereof in the
ordinary course of business.

Goods in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in statement of comprehensive income except to
the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is recognized
in other comprehensive income or equity, as the case may be.

Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year at the current rates of taxation after taking into
account applicable tax credits and tax rebates, if any. The charge for the current tax also includes adjustments, where

considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such
years.

Deferred

The Company accounts for deferred taxation, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences arising on
differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the unconsclidated financial statements and their
corresponding tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to

apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.
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6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.9.1

6.10

6.11

6.12

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the respective functional currencies of the Company at exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items

is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the year, adjusted for effective interest

and payments during the year, and the amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the
year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are retranslated to the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in statement of profit or loss.
Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and financial liability are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the Company has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on net basis or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultanecusly.

Provision

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive cbligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. The amount recognized as a provision reflects the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. However, provisions are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise of cash and bank balances and short term running finance.

Trade and other payable

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any and subseguently
measured at amortized cost.

Contract Balances
Contract Asset

A contract asset is the right to consideration for rendering of services if the Company performs by providing services to
customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned
consideration that is conditional.

Contract Liability
A contract liability is the obligation to render services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company render services

to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Financial assets - initial recognition

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, and subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through cther
comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value through profit or loss.

G-
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b)
c)
d)

a)

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them. With the exception of trade debts and bank balance
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of 2 financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade debts that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15. Refer to the
accounting policy in Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding.

This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers o how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or

convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Company's financial assets include long-term deposits, trade debts, loans to associates, short term investment, other
receivables and bank balances.

Financial assets - subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
(equity instruments)

Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or less, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value with net
changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognized as other income in the
statement of prefit or loss when the right of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in 2 hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host: a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of 2 derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset
out of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The

financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss. \
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b)

c)

d)

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

The Company does not have financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

» The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Company'’s financial assets at amortized costs includes trade debts and other receivables.
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as other income in
the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

The Company does not have any financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments).
Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:

* The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding tc collect contractual cash flows and
selling; and

» The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortized cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognized in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative
fair value change recognized in OCl is recycled to profit or loss.

The Company does not have debt instruments recorded at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and
losses.

Financial assets - Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes

an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained. "

w14

Page 12 of 32




6.13

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset, is measured at the lower of the eriginal
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial assets - Impairment

The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses ("ECL") for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the

contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to
the asset's original effective interest rate.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next
12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 30 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when intemal or external information indicates that
the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering

For trade debts, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses.
The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. The expected credit losses are recognized
in the statement of profit or loss. The impact of ECL on trade debts is disclosed in note 16.

For bank balances, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses.
The Company reviews internal and external information available for each bank balance to assess expected credit loss and
the likelihood to receive the outstanding contractual amount. The expected credit losses are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss however, the impact of ECL on bank balances is immaterial.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities - initial recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up arrangements,
creditors, liabilities against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other liabilities.

Financial liabilities - subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income.

This category applies to long term loans, short term borrowings utilized under mark-up arrangements, creditors, liabilities
against assets subject to finance lease, accrued and other liabilities.

Financial liabilities - derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in
the statement of profit or loss.
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6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company operated a defined contributory approved Provident Fund Trust for all its employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made both by the Company and employees at the rate of 5% (2021: 5%) of the basic salary to the
Provident Fund Trust. Obligation for contributions to defined contribution plan is expensed as the related service is provided.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is disclosed when:

i} there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed enly by the cccurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or

ii) there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embadying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit or loss atiributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting basic EPS by the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued
on conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares and post-tax effect of changes in profit and loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company that would result fram conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

Government grant

Government grants are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions shall be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on systematic basis
over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an
asset, it is recognized as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When a grant related to non monetary asset is received, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal amounts and
released to statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset, based on the pattern of consumption of the
benefits of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.

Mark-up bearing borrowings

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized initially at cost representing the fair value of consideration received less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at original cost less
subseguent repayments, while the difference between the original recognized amounts (as reduced by periodic payments}
and redemption value is recognized in the profit and loss account over the period of borrowings on an effective rate basis.
The berrowing cost on qualifying asset is included in the cost of related asset.

Long term investments

Investment in subsidiary

Investment in subsidiary companies are measured at cost as per the requirements of IAS-27 ‘Separate Financial
Statements’. However, at subsequent reporting dates, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of the investments and its
recoverability to determine whether there is an indication that such investments have suffered an impairment loss. If such
indication exists the carrying amounts of the investments are adjusted to the extent of impairment loss. Impairment losses
are recognized as an expense in profit and loss account.

Investments in equity instruments of associates

Associates are entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control. Investments in equity instruments
of associate is measured at cost less impairment, if any, in the Company's separate financial statements..

G

Page 14 of 32




7.1

7.2

8.1

10

10.1

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

2022 2021 2022 2021
(Number of shares) Rupees Rupees
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each allocated
for consideration paid in cash 1,500,000 1,500,000 15,000,000 15,000,000
Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each issued as
bonus shares 5,952,900 5,952,900 59,529,000 59,529,000
7,452,900 __7.452.900 74,529,000 74,529 000

LSE Financial Services Limited, an associated undertaking holds 2,683,042 (2021: 2,683,042) ordinary shares comprising
36% of the paid up share capital of the Company.

Directors hold 3,763,718 (2021: 3,763,718) ordinary shares comprising 41% of total paid up share capital of the Company.

Note 2022 2021

LONG-TERM FINANCE - SECURED Rupees Rupees
Bank AL Habib Limited 8.1 - 5,836,479
Balance as at 01 July 29,628,170 12,705,843
Receipts during the year - 25,770,131
Repayments during the year (20,345,500) (11,162,300)
Accrued markup 783,263 2,314,496

10,065,933 28,628,170
Accrued markup shown as current liability (783,263) (2,314.496)
Less: Current portion of long-term finance (9,282,670) (21,477,195)
Balance as at 30 June - 5.836.479

The Company has obtained long term finance facility from Bank AL Habib Limited under State Bank of Pakistan refinance
scheme for payment of wages and salaries of workers and employees for the menth of April 2020 to June 2020. The facility is
repayable in eight equal quarterly installments, payable quarterly in arrears, commencing after a grace peried of 9 months and
it carries markup at the rate of 3% per annum. This facility is secured by way of first hypothecation charge over book debts of
the Company for Rs. 65 million and fumiture & fixtures of the Company for Rs. 10 million. Being a loan below market rate of
interest, a portion of the loan has been treated as Government grant as described in note 9.

DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANT

This represents deferred grant recognized on loan received from Bank AL Habib Limited at below market interest rate under
SBP Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries of Workers and Employees.

Movement during the year is as follows: 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Balance as at 01 July 886,056 901,985
Amount recognized as deferred grant during the year - 1,331,869
Amount recognized as income during the year (783,263) (1.347,798)
102,793 886,056
Less: Current portion of deferred government grant (102,793) (783,263)
Balance as at 30 June - 102,793

LEASE LIABILITY

The effective interest rate used as the discounting factor (i.e. incremental borrowing rate) is 11%. The amount of future
payments and the period during which they will become due are:

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Peried ending 30 June
2022 - 6,956,325
2023 7,478,049 7,478,048
2024 8,038,903 8,038,903
15,516,952 22 473,277
Less: future finance charges (1,236,513) (2,911,429)
14,280,439 19,561,848
Less: current maturity shown under current liabilities {6,462,098) (5.281,409)
~ 7.818,341 14,280,439

Maximum lease term for the existing lease contracts is up to 4 years.

@13
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Minimum Lease Payments (MLP) and their Present Value (PV) are as follow:

MLP PV of MLP

(Rupees) (Rupees)
Due not later than 1 year 7,478,049 6,457,884
Due later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 8,038,903 7,822,555
15,516,952 14,280,439

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movement during the year:

Note 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Balances as at 01 July 19,561,848 -
Additions during the year - 23,827,160
Markup on lease liabilities 1,674,916 2,205,688
21,236,764 26,032,848
Less: Lease rentals paid (6.956,325) (6.471,000)
Balance as at 30 June 14,230,439 19,561,848
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED
Bank AL Habib Limited 1.1 - -
Add : Related accrued mark-up - 268,363
- 268,363
Less: Accrued mark-up shown as current liability - (268,363)

This represents utilized balance of running finance facility obtained from Bank AL Habib Limited against limit of Rs.30 million
(2021: Rs 10 million). This facility carries markup at the rate of 3 month KIBOR plus 150 basis points per annum (2021: 3
month Kibar plus 150 basis points per annum), payable quarterly. This is secured by way of first hypothecation charge of Rs.
85 million and Rs. 10 million on present and future current assets and fumiture & fixtures of the Company respectively.

Note 2022 2021
CONTRACT LIABILITY Rupees Rupees
Advance from customers 12.1 27,369,776 10,482,725
Deferred revenue 122 68,455,411 47,202,249
95,825,187 57,684,974

This represents advance received from customers for future rating of entities.
This represents deferred revenue relating to services recognized over time.

Revenue recognized in the reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the period
amounts to Rs. 57.68 million (2021:40.16 million).

Note 2022 2021
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Rupees Rupees
Remuneration and related cost payable 41,101,851 38,871,636
Infrastructure and related cost payables 660,800 458,867
Administrative and related cost payable 2,989,058 2942773
Due to related parties 13.1 25,185,404 16,362,440
Sales tax payable 13,123,755 9,175,872
83.060,867 67.812,588
Payable to related parties include:
PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited (a subsidiary) 13.1.1 24,866,667 16,362,440
Aequitas Information Services Limited (an asscciate) 13.1.2 318,737 -
25185404 16.362.440

This represents advance received from PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited which is te be adjusted against expense incurred on
behalf of the Company.

This represents net receivable balance from Aequitas Information Services Limited which is to be adjusted against expense
incurred on behalf of the Company.

-
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIM/ TED

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Commitments

JS Bank Limited has issued performance guarantee on behalf of the Company in favour of Finance Department
of Government of Punjab amounting to Rs. 0.05 million (2021: Rs. 0.05 million).

Contingencies

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the "DCIR") issued order dated April 24, 2019 under section 161(1)
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the "Ordinance”) for the tax year 2014 and 2017 whereby tax amounting to
Rs. 1.85 million and Rs. 1.35 million respectively, for non-deduction of withholding tax was levied. The Company
preferred an appeal on May 23, 2019 before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [the “CIR(A)"], which is
pending adjudication. The management expects a favourable outcome in this regard.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the “DCIR") issued order dated May 31, 2021 under section 122(1)
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the “Ordinance”) for the tax year 2015 whereby tax amounting to Rs. 10.1
million on account of disallowance of expenses was levied. The Company preferred an appeal on June 18,
2021 before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [the "CIR(A)"], which is pending adjudication. The
management expects a favourable outcome in this regard.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the “DCIR") issued order dated February 22, 2019 under section
161(1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the “Ordinance”) for the tax year 2016 whereby tax amounting to
Rs. 2.2 million for non-deduction of withholding tax was levied. The Company preferred an appeal before
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [the “"CIR(A)"], which is decided against the Company by confirming
the tax liability of Rs. 0.59 million. Being aggrieved, the Company filed an appeal on September 16, 2021 before
the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (the “ATIR"), which is pending adjudication. The management expects a
favourable outcome in this regard.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the "DCIR") issued show cause notice dated January 26, 2021

under section 161 (1A) of the Income tax COrdinance, 2001 ("the Ordinance") for the tax year 2018 for non-
deduction of withholding tax on expenses and purchases. In compliance to this notes, a reply by the Company
has duly been submitted dated February 17, 2021 which is still under process. The management expects a

favourable outcome in this regard.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the "DCIR") issued show cause notice dated January 27, 2021
under section 161 (1A) of the Income tax Ordinance, 2001 ("the Ordinance™) for the tax year 2019 and tax year
2020 for non-deduction of withholding tax on expenses and purchases. No correspondence has been made in
respect of these notices. Since assessing officer was transferred and notices from new officers are still not
received. The management expects a favourable outcome in this regard.

The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (the "DCIR") issued show cause notice dated February 19, 2021

under section 161(1A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the “Ordinance”) for the tax year 2021 for non-
deduction of withholding tax on expenses and purchases. In compliance to this notice, a reply has duly been

submitted dated February 17, 2021 which is still under process. The management expects a favourable

outcome in this regard.

The Assistant Commissioner Sind Revenue Board (the "ACSR") issued show cause notice dated October 21,
2021 under section 3 & 8 of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act 2011 (the " Act") for the tax period
2017,2018,2019 & 2020 for revenue difference in SRB sales tax returns and PACRA Audited Accounts for
abovementioned periods and sales tax amounting Rs. 38.02 million was levied. In compliance to this notice, the
assessing officer passed judgement on dated July 02, 2022 and tax assessed by Rs. 831,949 and imposed
penalty by Rs. 41,594. Against such order an appeal is filed before the worthily Commissioner Appeals. The

management expects a favourable outcome in this regard. 1
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

2022 2021
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET Rupees Rupees
Balances as at 01 July 17,870,370 -
Additions during the year - 23,827,160
Less: depreciation (5,956,790) (5,956,790)
Balance as at 30 June 11,913,580 17.870,370

These include 1 leasehold buildings having 2 floors situated at Awami Complex, FB-1, Usman Block, Garden Town.
Lahore.

Note 2022 2021
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS Rupees Rupees
Investment in subsidiary 18.1 100,000 100.000
Investment in associate 18.2 100,000,000 100,000,000
100.100.000 100.100.000

This represents investment in PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
incorporated in Pakistan. The Company owns 10,000 (2021: 10,000) fully paid ordinary shares at the rate of Rs 10 each.
The registered office of the subsidiary is situated at Awami Complex, FB-1, Usman Block, New Garden Town, Lahore.

This represents 20% equity investment in Aequitas Information Services Limited and accordingly classified as investment
in associate. At the year end the Company owns 10,000,000 (2021: 10,000,000) fully paid shares at the rate of Rs. 10
each. The registered office of Aequitas Information Services Limited is situated at Plaza 8-B, Commercial area Phase V,
DHA, Lahore, Pakistan. The investment has been made in accordance with the requirements under Companies Act 2017.

DEFERRED TAXATION
2022
: Credit to other
Opening (Charge) / credit .
balanice to profit or loss com!:rehenswe Closing balance
income
--------------------- Rupees =====s=emcrccccccnnan
Deductible temporary difference
Accelerated tax depreciation /
Amortization allowances 1,043,556 (618,299) - 425,257
Provision for expected credit losses 1,430,345 576,489 - 2,006,834
Payable to provident fund 124,810 (30,110) - 94,700
Lease liabilities - net 487,782 198,607 - 686,389
3,086,493 126,687 - 3,213,180
2021
. Credit to other
: (Charge) / credit y g
Opening balance o profit or loss comprehenswe Closing balance
income
--------------------- Rupees -=----cccmmmcmccaaa
Deductible temporary difference
Accelerated tax depreciation /
Amortization allowances 257,463 786,093 - 1,043,556
Provision for expected credit losses 1,620,268 (189,923) - 1,430,345
Payable to provident fund 383,664 (258,854) - 124,810
Contract liability 8,366,200 (8,366,200) - -
Lease liabilities - net - 487,782 487,782
10,627,595 (7,541,102) - 3,086,493
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Note 2022 _2021

TRADE DEBTS - UNSECURED Rupees Rupees
Trade debts 85,933,461 98,344,650
Less: Provision for expected credit loss 201 (6,920,116) (4,859,999)

79,013,345 93,384,651
The movement in provision for expected credit loss is as follows:
Balance as at 1 July 4,959,999 5,618,902
Charge for the year 4,714,604 1,862,776
Trade debts written-off (2,754,487) (2.521,679)

1,960,117 (658,903)

Balance as at 30 June 6,920,116 4,958,999

CONTRACT ASSET

This includes cost of provisioning of services by the Company to the customers, but right to receive payments

against such goods and services has not yet been established.

Note 2022 2021
RECEIVABLE FROM RELATED PARTIES Rupees Rupees
PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited 221 7,503,032 3,528,952
Aequitas Information Services Limited - share deposit money 12,733,007 -
Aequitas Information Services Limited - Accrued markup 1,113,690 250,160
Analytics (Private) Limited - Reimbursement 327,099 537,375
22.2 21,676,828 4,316,487
This relates to an amount receivable on account of common expenditures incurred.
The maximum aggregate amount outstanding from related parties at any time during the year was:
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Aequitas Information Services Limited 2,380,190 1,152,735
Analytics (Private) Limited 629,024 1,387,850
PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited 4,770,485 1,865,219
Age analysis of receivable from related parties, past due but not impaired is as follows:
Note 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
0 to 6 months 8,943,821 787,535
6 to 12 months 12,733,007 -
Above 12 months - -
21,676,828 787,535
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE-UNSECURED
Loan to Aequitas Information Services Limited 231 30,000,000 -
Add : Related accrued mark-up 1,113,690 2,603,861
31,113,690 2,603,861
Less: Accrued mark-up (1,113,690) (2.603,861)
30,000,000 -
The movement in loan to an associate is as follows:
Balance as at 01 July - 30,000,000
Payments during the year 23.2 30,000,000 -
Shares issued - (30,000,000)
Balance as at 30 June 30,000,000 -
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

This represents loan given to Aequitas Information Services Limited (AISL) for the purpose of bridging AISL's
cash shortfall till injection of new equity. The loan was given on 18th January 2022. The tenure of the loan will
be one year from the date of disbursement. The current markup rate is three month KIBOR plus 300 bps. As per
the agreement the markup rate will be three month KIBOR pius 300 bps or at the rate paid by Aequitas

Information Services Limited to its other sponser shareholder, whichever is higher. Any delay in payment would
yield a service charge of 1% per month.

Note 2022 2021
ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS Rupees Rupees
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Advances - unsecured, considered good
- to employees 6,286,168 124,426
- to suppliers 481,257 709,503
6,767,425 833,929
Sales tax receivable 7,767,390 5,643,022
Prepayments 2,450,651 1,663,129
Mark up receivable on short term investments (MTBs) 763,772 -
17,749,238 8,140,080
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Investment in Government securities 25.1 59,963,620 -

This relates to invesmtent in treasury bills by the Company. They carry yield ranging from 10.2% to 12.4%

(2021: Nil) per annum. These Treasury bills have maturity period of 3 months. These Government securities
have an aggregate face value of Rs. 62 million (2021: Nil)

Note 2022 2021
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupees Rupees
Local currency - deposits and saving accounts 26.1 34,113,567 90,601,384

These carries mark up ranging from 6.5% to 13% (2021: 5.5% to 6.5%) per annum.

Note 2022 2021
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS - NET Rupees Rupees
Income from rating business
- domestic 352,052,187 309,430,218
- foreign 1,610,740 1,510,795
353,662,927 310,941,013
Income from non rating business
- domestic 271 3,891,681 2,000,000
- foreign 8,997,465 -
12,889,146 2,000,000
Less: Provincial Sales tax (49,919,552) {43,881,236)

27.2 316,632,521 269,058,777

During the year, there were no clients who along with their associates contributed ten percent (10%) or more of
the non-rating revenue of the Company._ ).
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Disaggregation of Fees income

In the following table fees income from contracts with customers is disaggregated primarily by types of rating
and timing of revenue recognition.

Note 2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Type of rating services
Entity rating 216,864,810 188,980,745
Instrument rating 63,650,155 55,847,779
Fund rating 23,228,409 22,231,253
303,743,374 267,059,777
Type of Non rating services
Consultancy services 12,889,146 2,000,000
316,632,520 268,059,777
Timing of revenue recognition
Revenue recognized at a point in time 264,079,913 220,712,692
Revenue recognized over - time 52,552,607 46,347,085
316,632,520 268,059,777
REMUNERATION COST
Staff salaries & other benefits 28.1 151,259,864 132,296,693
Retired employees benefits 1,041,168 1,056,866
External rating committee member fee 6,850,000 7,600,000
Advisory / Consultancy fee 200,000 -
159,351,032 140,853,559

Salaries and other benefits include Rs. 4.25 million (2021: Rs. 2.53 million) in respect of contribution to provident
fund.

Note 2022 2021

INFRASTRUCTURE COST Rupees Rupees
Rent, rates and taxes 2,734,233 1,904,341
Technology & related expenses 2,183,563 1,589,617
Repair & Mantainance 4,328,754 4682135
Depreciation on property and equipment 5,540,920 3,335,387
Amortization on intangible assets 95,047 254,850
Depreciation on right of use asset 5,956,730 5,856,790
Others 1,561,690 986,702

25,791,974 21,067,623

ADMINISTRATIVE COST

Directors meeting expenses 301 3,616,774 2,023,007
Legal & professional charges 1,687,992 5,769,900
Entertainment and related expenses 3,836,297 2,916,664
Travelling, food and accommodation 2,429,052 1,986,534
Auditor's remuneration 750,000 498,750
Tax advisory,consultancy & fees 722,501 610,989
Communication and related expenses 907,211 928,137
Promotional expenses 1,288,569 1,140,738
Others 830,839 1,280,613

16.069,234 17,155,343

This relates to the meeting fee paid to Directors of the Company for attending the meetings held during the year. )
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

2022 2021
31 OTHER INCOME Rupees Rupees
Income from financial assets:
Mark-up based income from conventional banks:
Mark-up on savings accounts 5,062,111 310,923
Unwinding of Government grant 783,263 1,347,798
Mark-up on loan given to associate 1,908,452 2,603,861
Profit on short term investment 2,034,455 -
9,788,282 4,262,582
Income from non-financial assets:
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 2,219,268 18,227,633
Reimbursement from clients 4,730,010 2,989,128
Miscellaneous income 119,954 203,020
Shared services with PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited 2,749,179 -
9,818,411 21,419,781
19.606,692 25,682,363
32 FINANCE COST
Mark-up on long term borrowings 1,344,549 2,314 497
Mark-up on short term borrowings - 1,270,462
Finance cost on lease liability 1,674,916 2,205,688
Bank charges 73,182 137,672
3,092,647 5,928,319
33 TAXATION
Current tax
Current year 36,865,911 27,058,410
Prior year w s
36,865,911 27,058,410
Deferred tax (126,687) 7,541,102
36,739,224 34,588,512
331 Reconciliation between accounting profit and taxation
Profit before taxation 127,219,722 107,774,520
Tax at applicable rate of 29% (2021: 29%) 36,893,719 31,254,611
Tax effect of deductions (27,809) (4,196,201)
Deferred taxation impact (126,687) 7,541,102
36,739,224 34,599,512
34 EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
Profit after tax 90.480.498 73,175,008
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year 7,452,900 7,452,800
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 12.14 9.82
341

Basic earnings per share has been calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

by weighted average number of ordinary shares.

34.2  There is no dilutive effect on the basic eamings per share of the Company._ 5
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36

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

The aggregate amounts charged in these unconsolidated financial statements for the year for remuneration, including certain benefits to the Chief Executive, Directors and
other Executives of the Company are as follows:

Chief Executive Non - Executive directors Executives
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Rupees
Managerial remuneration 22,956,861 21,514,278 - - 75,141,450 43,347,685
Contribution to provident fund 1,043,139 977,922 - - 2,578,032 1,966,359
Bonus 8,000,000 5,347,812 - - 11,207,994 7,950,426
Meeting fee - - 3,616,774 2,023,007 - -
Reimbursable expenses 208,130 250,403 - - 515,689 383,623
Total 32,208,130 28,090,415 3,616,774 2,023,007 89,443,165 53,648,093
Numbers 1 1 6 7 45 25
Transactions and balances with related parties
Balances and transactions with related parties are as follows:
2022 2021

100 % owned Subsidiary company Rupees Rupees
PACRA Analytics (Private) Limited
On account of:
Expense paid on behalf of subsidiary company 2,749,179 3,628,952
Year end balances - unsecured
Payable to related parly - unsecured (7,503,032) 16,362,440
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Associated company (20% owned)

Aequitas Information Services Limited

On account of:

Investment in associate during the year

On account of:

Amount given on account of loan

Expense paid on behalf of related party
Expenses paid by related party on behalf of Company

Mark-up on loan charged to related party

Markup paid by related party

Receivable from related party - unsecured

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Post employment benefit plans / Other related parties

On account of:

Contributions to Provident Fund Trust

Year end payable balance

Provident fund

Directors

Muhammad Adnan Afaq (10% equity held)

On account of:
Dividend paid

Meeting fee

Mr. Shahzad Saleem, CEO
On account of:
Remuneration

Year end payable balance

Salary payable

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
- 30,000,000
30,000,000 -
1,266,500 1,133,492
1,595,237 639,276
1,908,452 2,603,861
794,762 2,254,681
{794,953) (250,160)
4,254,802 4,151,818
793,336 700,948
8,198,190 15,278,445
40,000 200,000
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
22,956,861 27,823,024
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Mumtaz Hussain Syed (27% equity held)
On account of;

Dividend paid

Meeting fee

Sardar Ali Watto (13.5% equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid

Meeting Fee

Usman Haider (13.5% Equity held)
On account of:

Dividend paid

Meeting Fee

Other Directors (0.00930% equity held)
On account of:
Dividend paid

Meeting fee

Share holders holding more than 20% equity:

Lahore Stock Exchange (36% Equity held)

On account of:

Dividend paid

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Key Management Personnel (other than directors)

Mr. Shahzad Saleem, CEQ
On account of:

Remuneration

22,135,080 41,251,740
460,000 =
11,067,551 20,625,891
615,000 -
11,067,540 20,625,870
7 24
2,270,000 1,120,000
29,513,462 95,002,361
22,956,861 21,514,278
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from the Campany's financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk. The management reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

371 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and
cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting
transactions with specific counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged In similar business activities or have similar
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic,
political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to
developments affecting a particular industry.

The Company Is exposed to credit risk on trade debts, deposits, other receivables and bank balances. The Company seeks to
minimize the credit risk exposure through having exposures only to customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities
where applicable. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

Carrying Vaiues
Note 2022 2021
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Trade debts - unsecured 20 79,013,345 93,384,651
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 24 17,749,238 8,140,080
Advance income tax - net 33,904,599 27,871,591
Cash and bank balances 26 34,113,567 20,601,384

164,780,749 219,897.716

37.1.1 Trade debts
Analysis of trade debts that are neither past due nor impaired and that are past due but not impaired Is described in Note 16.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, product type, customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
value of each class of financial assets. The Company does not hold collateral as security. The letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance are considered integral part of trade receivables and considered In the calculation of impairment.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Company's trade debts using a provision matrix:

0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days Over 271 days 365 and above Total
As at 30 June 2022
Expected credit loss rate 0.9% 30.2% - - - -
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at
defauit 64,982,747 20,950,714 - - - 85,933,461
Expected credit loss 594,079 6,326,038 - - - 6,920,116
0-90 days 81-180 days 181-270days Over 271 days 365 and above Total
As at 30 June 2021
Expected credit loss rate 0.5% 7.0% 18.3% 26.6% 74.2% -
Estimated total gross
carrylng amount at
default 64,372,281 25,842,688 4,584,874 1,262,130 2,182,677 98,344,650
Expected credit loss 290,929 1,828,235 885,233 335,618 1,619,984 4,959,9997

-
‘
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37.1.2 Bank balances

Bank AL Habib

37.2 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obli
prudent risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balanc
table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s fi

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Rating Rating Agency 2022 - 2021
Short Term Long Term (Rupees) {Rupees)
A-1+ AA+ PACRA 34,113,567 90,601,394
34,113,567 90,601,384

gations as they fall due. The Company applies
es and by keeping committed credit lines. The
nangcial liabilities at the following reporting dates:

Year ended Less than 3 3to12
30 June 2022 On demand months months 1to 5 years > 5 years Total
-Amount in Rupees
Short term borrowing- - - - - - -
secured
Contract liability - 95,825,187 . - - 95,825,187
Current portion of long 9,282,670 - - - - 9,282,670
term finance
Current portion of - - 6,462,098 7,818,341 - 14,280,439
lease liabilities
Accrued mark-up 866,414 - - - - 866,414
Trade and other payables 83,060,867 - - - - 83,060,867
93,209,951 95,825,187 6,462,098 7,818,341 - 203,315,577
Year ended Less than 3
30 June 2021 On demand months 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years > 35 years Total
—Amount in Rupees
Short term borrowing- - - - - - -
secured
Contract liability - 57,684,974 - - - 57,684,974
Current portion of long 23,791,691 - - - - 23,791,691
term finance
Current portion of - - 5,281,408 - - 5,281,409
lease liabilities
Accrued mark-up 268,363 - - - - 268,363
Trade and other payables 58,659,356 - - - - 58,658,356
82,718,410 57,684,974 5,281,408 - - 145,685,793

37.3 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fl

interest rate.

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market Interest rates relates

company with floating interest rates.

374 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

(Increase) / decrease

uctuate due to changes in market

primarily to the fund obtained from parent

Effect on profit before tax

in basis points 2022 2021
(Rupees) (Rupees)
+100 3,411,357 9,060,138
-100 (3,411,357) (9.060,139)

The carrying value of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair value. Fair value

is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

-
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities tc cash flows arising from financing activities

2022
Long term Lease Dividend Total
finances liabilities payable
ccecesecncnns Rupees seevcccacnnns

Balance as at 01 July 30,960,038 (6,716,712) - 24,243,327
Cashflows

Long term loans repaid net of repayment (19,562,236) - - (19,562,236)
Lease liabilities - net - (6,956,325) . (6.956,325)
Dividend declared - - 81,981,900 81,981,900
Dividend paid - - (81,981,900) (81,981,300)
Balance as at 30 June 11,397,803 (13,673,037) - (2,275,234)

2021
L; :fn?;“ Lease liabilities ?:]:yii?: Total
------------ Rupees-c-cccccaao-.

Balance as at 01 July 12,705,843 - - 12,705,843
Cashflows

Long term loans obtained net of repayment 18,254,196 - - 18,254,186
Lease liabilities - net - (6,716,712) - (6,716,712)
Dividend declared - - 152,784,450 152,784,450
Dividend paid - - (152,784,450)  (152,784,450)
Balance as at 30 June 30,960,038 (6,716.712) - 24,243,327

Capital risk management

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain the future development of its business. The Board of Directors monitors the retum on capital employed, which the

Company defines as operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of
dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

(i) to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concem, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

(i) to provide an adequate return to shareholders.

The Company manages the capital structure In the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Neither there were any changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year nar the Company is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.‘

&)
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40.2

41.

42.

THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURE

The following information is based on latest un-audited financial statements of the Fund:

Un-audited Audited
2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Size of the fund - Total assets 41,009,162 35,118,058
Cost of investments made 39,928,265 34,347,358
Percentage of investments made 97.36% 97.81%
Fair value of investments 41,784,511 34,347,358
The break-up of fair value of investments is:
2022 2021
Rupees % Rupees %
Government Securities 32,000,000 77% - -
Deposit and saving accounts 9,784,511 23% 14,347,358 42%
Term deposit receipts - - 20,000,000 58%
41,784,511 100% 34,347,358 100%

The investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total and average number of employees during the year and as at June 30 are as follows:

2022 2021
—{(No. of employees)~--
Average number of employees during the year 75 74
Number of employees as at 30 June 80 80

CHANGE IN PRESENTATION

As per [AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' the Company has the option to present its statement of
comprehensive income either as ‘nature of expense method' or ‘cost of sale method'. During the year, the
Company has changed the presentation of statement of comprehensive income to ‘nature of expense method’
and aggregated expenses within profit or loss according to their nature.

Accordingly, due to change in presentation, corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified
wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison. The following material reclassifications were made:

Reclassification from Reclassification to 2022
Rupees
Direct cost Remuneration cost 90,087,322
Infrastructure cost 8,767,365
Administrative cost Remuneration cost 50,866,237
Infrastructure cost 12,300,258

Since, these reclassification adjustments do not have a material effect on the information at the beginning of the
preceding period, therefore third statement of financial position as at the beginning period has not been
presented. 5
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THE PAKISTAN CREDIT RATING AGENCY LIMITED
43. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements were authorized for issue on by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

e

AL‘M m\“(‘é‘,“,’ /.VT//”

Chief Exec‘tive Director
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